ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COMM TTEE
May 3, 2001
1:12 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Vic Kohring, Chair
Representative Beverly Masek, Vice Chair
Representative Drew Scal zi

Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Mary Kapsner

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Scott Ogan
Representative Al bert Kookesh

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 64
"An Act relating to international airports revenue bonds;
providing for an effective date."”

- MOVED CSHB 64(TRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 64

SHORT TI TLE: | NTERNATI ONAL Al RPORTS REVENUE BONDS
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

and

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

01/16/01 0097 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 01 0097 (H TRA, FIN

01/ 16/ 01 0098 (H) FN 1. (REV)

01/ 16/ 01 0098 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

05/ 03/ 01 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

05/03/01 (H Moved Qut of Conmmttee
M NUTE( TRA)

05/ 04/ 01 1526 (H TRA RPT CS(TRA) NT 4DP

05/ 04/ 01 1526 (H) DP: MASEK, W LSON, SCALZI,
KOHRI NG

05/ 04/ 01 1526 (H) FN2: (REV)

05/ 04/ 01 1526 (H) REFERRED TO FI NANCE

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- May 3, 2001



W TNESS REG STER

KURT PARKAN, Deputy Conmi ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities
3132 Channel Drive

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Expl ai ned HB 64.

KI' P KNUDSON

810 O Pl ace

ANCHORAGE, Al aska 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 64.

DAVI D EBERLE, Regi onal Director

Central Region

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities
PO Box 196900

Anchor age, Al aska 99519

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed question on HB 64.

DEVEN M TCHELL, Debt Manager

Treasury Division

Depart ment of Revenue

PO Box 110405

Juneau, Al aska 99811

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on HB 64.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-34, SIDE A
Nunmber 0001

CHAIR VIC KOHRING called the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:12 p.m Menbers present at the
call to order were Representatives Kohring, Scalzi, WIson, and
Masek. Representative Kapsner joined the neeting as it was in
pr ogr ess.

HB 64- 1 NTERNATI ONAL Al RPORTS REVENUE BONDS

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of SB 218]
CHAI R KOHRI NG announced that the commttee would consi der HOUSE

BILL NO. 64, "An Act relating to international airports revenue
bonds; and providing for an effective date.”

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- May 3, 2001



Nunber 0111

REPRESENTATIVE MASEK nade a notion to adopt the proposed
commttee substitute (CS) for HB 64, version 22-GH1060\C, Cook,
5/2/01, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version C
was before the commttee.

KURT PARKAN, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner,
Departnent of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF), cane
forth to explain HB 64. He stated that [HB 64] is an inportant

bill for the international airport system and represents a tine
when the state, the airport system and the airlines worked
cooperatively. He explained that the international airport

system is conposed of the Fairbanks and Anchorage airports. An
operating agreenent is used with the carriers that fly into
those two airports. That operating agreenment has been five
years in length and expired |ast July. He said the departnent
has been in "hol dover" since then, by continuing the existing
operating agreenment, and has been in negotiations wth the
airlines for about a year and a half to cone up wth a new
operati ng agreenent.

MR. PARKAN remarked that one of the benefits of the operating

agreenent, which is a residual agreenent, is that the airlines
are willing to pay the costs of operating, nmaintaining, and
building the airport system In exchange, [the airlines] are

able to review and concur with approval projects that [ DOT&PF]
brings forward. He added that it is unique in state governnent
in that those who are essentially paying the bills - the
airlines - have an opportunity to work with [the departnment] in
devel oping the capital inprovenent program and to give [DOT&PF]
the go-ahead to do those projects; [DOT&F] then brings them
forward to the legislature for authorization. There is a
mechanism in the event that [the airlines] reject a project,
wher eby [DOT&PF] can cone back the following year and do the
proj ect.

Number 0357

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON asked for clarification on what happens
when a project is rejected.

MR. PARKAN responded that if the airlines don't want [DOT&PF] to
do a project, [DOI&F] comes back the next vyear, brings it
forward to [the airlines], and can then bring it to [the
| egi slature] for its ultimte deci sion-naking.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- May 3, 2001



MR.  PARKAN continued, explaining that when [DOT&PF] started
negotiations this tine, the airlines want to take a different
approach to how the capital programis funded. They want to use
a nodel that is used in alnost every other major airport in the
country, which is bond financing of their CIP (capital
I nprovenent project).

MR. PARKAN said the reasons are these: They want sone certainty
regarding the costs for doing business at the airport system
Every year there is a CIP, that could go up or down, and [the
airlines] don't really know what to expect in ternms of their
rates and fees; therefore, they want sonething that goes beyond
one year. Furthernore, [the airlines] want [DOT&PF] to cone
forward with nore than just a year's package of projects. He
said [DOT&PF] agreed to the concept and worked out a five-year
CIP that essentially Jlasts the |length of the operating
agr eenent .

Nunmber 0589

MR. PARKAN i nformed nenbers that HB 64 represents the first two
years of those projects. The intent would be to sell the bonds
this fall, and [DOT&PF] would use interimfinancing to deal with
the construction of some of those projects. He added that there
is a 20-year payback [which he later clarified is 25 years] with
the bonds through the international airport revenue fund.
Essentially, the airlines pay the debt.

REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI asked M. Parkan to explain nore about the
increase [in the years of the operating agreenent].

MR. PARKAN answered that the operating agreenent has the five-
year CIP, but the projects thenselves are an attachnent to the
agr eenent . Therefore, |[DOT&PF] has been I|ocked into those
proj ects. He said [DOT&PF] feels the two-year bond package
woul d all ow a reasonabl e anbunt of tine.

REPRESENTATI VE = KAPSNER asked M. Parkan to explain the
international airport fund and whether it is federal noney or
t axes paid by consuners.

Number 0821
MR. PARKAN responded that the international airport revenue fund
is an enterprise fund and is not related to the general fund or

a federal fund. All the costs associated with doing business
and maintaining the airport system are borne by the users of the

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- May 3, 2001



system Passengers contribute by paying the airline tickets.
They also pay passenger facility charges: $3 every tine they
| eave either Fairbanks or Anchorage and go outside Al aska. Al
concessions such as rental-car conpanies and parking garages
contribute to the operations of the system

MR. PARKAN noted that there are federal AP (Airport | nprovenent
Program funds through FAA (Federal Aviation Adm nistration) for

construction. That noney is based on [DOT&PF s] entitlenents,
which are determned by the anount of cargo and nunber of
passengers. He noted that Anchorage Airport is the nunber one

cargo airport in the country in ternms of |anded wei ght.

CHAI R KOHRI NG asked whether that is what the governor referred
to in the third paragraph of his letter [provided in the
commttee packets], when he wote that federal capital grants
are a source of noney to pay off the bonds.

MR. PARKAN answered in the affirmati ve.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON asked M. Parkan to explain the added
| anguage [on page 2 of the proposed CS, Version C.

MR. PARKAN responded that the |anguage |ooks identical to the
| anguage that the Senate Transportation Standing Comm ttee added
to its version [SB 218]. It requires [DOT&PF] to provide
reporting on the projects.

Nunmber 1008

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK asked why the funding is less in the
proposed CS, on page 1, line 8, than what the governor suggested
in his letter.

MR. PARKAN answered that the $5 mllion reduction in the
proposed CS was at |[DOI&PF s] recomendati on. There was $5
mllion that [DOT&PF] had identified as a project for relocation
costs. The airlines preferred that [DOI&F] not bond funds, but
cash-fund them He said [DOT&F] has sonme residual noney in its
account that wll be rolled forward in credit to that project.

Nunmber 1088

[ There was a notion to nove CSHB 64 from conmittee, but it was
w thdrawn in order to take testinony. ]

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- May 3, 2001



CHAIR KOHRING noted that the Senate has passed |egislation and
that there are two major issues: one is the dollar anount
difference, and the other is the accountability issue.

Nunmber 1153

KIP KNUDSON testified via teleconference and stated that the
bill is of great interest to all the airlines at Anchorage and
Fai rbanks. He stated that it was a long process to achieve the
agreenent between the airlines and the airport; he noted that he
had participated on the negotiating commttee.

CHAIR KOHRING stated that it is good to hear from a private
sector conpany in support of the bill. He asked how the
pr oposed CS differs from the ori gi nal bi |l in its
accountability.

MR. PARKAN responded that the additional |[|anguage asks the
departnment to annually give a report to the legislature on its
anticipated needs for the next fiscal year and its expenses from
t he previous year.

CHAI R KOHRI NG asked M. Parkan to address the problens with the
current reconstruction of the Anchorage airport. There were
sonme seism c concerns, which cost the state noney.

MR. PARKAN deferred to David Eberl e.

DAVI D EBERLE, Regional Director, Central Region, Departnent of
Transportation & Publ i c Facilities, testified Vi a
tel econference. He answered that the project, called Phase One,
is the foundation in structural steel for the new concourse

That contract was awarded a little over a year ago. At that
time [DOT&PF] was in the process of securing building permts
through the Municipality of Anchorage, and anticipated a 70-day

ti mefrane. Shortly after the award of the contract, the
muni ci pality, in reviewing the design and the permt
application, discovered sone design errors and brought those to
the attention of the designer. The designer then responded and

made appropriate changes. On that basis, he said, [DOT&PF]
procured the steel through the construction contract and began
sone of the foundation work. Further into the review, the
municipality's reviewer requested nore detail regarding sone of
t he design assunptions and wanted to see a full-fledged conputer
nodel that sinulates the behavior of the building and the
seismc condition

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- May 3, 2001



Nunber 1438

MR. EBERLE continued, stating that the contractor becane engaged
in a lengthy debate over the adequacy of that nodel. It took
over six nonths to resolve how the building would behave in a
seismc event. The result of not having permts, he said, was
that [DOT&PF] basically had its contractor in a holding pattern.
Af ter | engt hy discussions between the designer and the
municipality, it was agreed that the nunicipality as well as
[ DOT&PF] would hire third-party engineering firnms to take up the
reviews. Those two third-party firnms nade decisions on anything
that had controversy. He stated that they now have all the
foundation permts and should have all the permts for the new
concourse by the end of May or early June.

MR. EBERLE remarked that there are sonme changes to foundations
previously built that will have to be undertaken; however, those
are relatively minor in nature and will total Iess than $100, 000
worth of work. The biggest inpacts are having the contractor on
hol d; changes to the foundations that have occurred as this
process went on; and the tinme delay. The second phase of the
project, he said, is "on the street” now for bids. Bid opening
will be in early June, but not until all the building permts
are secure.

Nunber 1582

CHAIR KOHRING asked how much noney is involved in the
reconstruction.

MR. EBERLE reiterated that redoing the work is not the mjor
cost. The major cost is the delay tine and the changes to
foundations frombid tine to what is ultimately constructed. He
added that there are also going to be sonme changes to the steel,
but those are relatively mnor. Minly, it is an inpact cost to
the construction and having the contractor and consultants on
for an extra year.

CHAI R KOHRI NG asked whet her those nunbers have been added up.
MR. EBERLE answered that [DOT&PF] does not have a firm handl e on
all the costs, but is anticipating that the costs will exceed $5

mllion and coul d approach $10 m |l 1li on.

Nunber 1620

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- May 3, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE SCALZI asked whether this is going to inpact
other contracts the contractors may have, and whether they are
secure in the del ay.

MR. EBERLE responded that [DOT&PF s] intention is to treat the
construction contractors fairly. This delay is not their fault.

MR. PARKAN clarified that there is a 25-year [payback with the
bonds], not a 20-year payback as he'd nentioned earlier.

CHAI R KOHRI NG noted that the fiscal note in the packet reflects
the original legislation. The proposed CS reflects the Senate's
version of the fiscal note [for SB 218].

Nunber 1734
REPRESENTATI VE MASEK nade a notion to adopt the fiscal note for
[SB 218, the conpanion bill]. There being no objection, it was
so ordered.
DEVEN M TCHELL, Debt Manager, Treasury D vision, Departnent of

Revenue, cane forth and stated that the fiscal note in the
commttee packets is for the CS for SB 218. He noted:

Simlar to the transaction we entered into in 1999,

the ... bonds for the [term nal] devel opnent project,
we would have a simlar plan of finance with these
bonds. W would have two years of capitalized

interest, where we would pay our interest expense from
principal that we issue upfront, so there we be no
inpact on the revenues of the system during that
period of tine. Then debt service would begin in FY
[fiscal year] 'O04. W'd had half a year's debt
service, approximately $4.7 mllion, ranmping up to a
| evelized debt service of $12.25 nillion per year
t hrough the 25-year term of the bonds.

MR MTCHELL stated that he used an interest rate assunption
that is relatively conservative. He said he expects the
ultimate debt-service paynents to be well below the nunbers
indicated in the fiscal note.

Nunmber 1825

CHAI R KOHRI NG noted that, philosophically, he thinks this is a
good approach as far as the packaging. He asked M. Parkan what

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- May 3, 2001



assurances there are that DOT&PF wi Il not be com ng back to [the
| egi sl ature] for nore noney.

MR. PARKAN responded that before the conmttee is [DOT&PF s]
annual CIP that [DOT&PF] always comes to the legislature for.
He said [DOT&PF] will be comng back in two years for another

series of projects that wll last through the next three years.
He added that there wll also be sonme projects that wll
continue to be cash-funded, and [DOT&F] wll be com ng back

every year for those.
Number 1915

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK noved to report CSHB 64, version 22-
GH1060\C, Cook, 5/2/01, out of conmttee wth individual
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 64(TRA) was reported from the House
Transportation Standing Commttee.

ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Transportation Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 1:45
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 9- May 3, 2001



